ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
LEG SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
January 12, 2009
9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Ral ph Sanuels, Chair
Representati ve M ke Doogan

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representative Mke Kelly (via tel econference)
Representati ve Kevin Meyer (alternate)

Senator Bert Stednman
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
Senator Charlie Huggins (alternate)

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lyman Hoffman, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Reggi e Joule (alternate)
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senator Lyda Green

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

APPROVAL OF M NUTES

GAS FI SCAL DESI GN ADDI TI ONAL | NFORVATI ON: DAN DI CKI NSON  AND
DAVI D WOOD

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT - PUBLIC SCHOOL
PERFORVMANCE | NCENTI VE PROGRAM  EDDY JEANS

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

FINAL AUDIT - DEPARTMENT OF COWERCE, COWUN TY AND ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, BOARD OF PUBLI C ACCOUNTANCY - SUNSET

OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

DAN E. DI CKI NSON, CPA, Consultant

to the Legislative Budget and Audit (JBUD) Conmittee
Al aska State Legislature

BUD COW TTEE -1- January 12, 2009



Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented answers to questions asked by
commttee nenbers at the last neeting regarding oil and gas
t axati on.

DAVI D WOOD, PhD, Consult ant

to the Legislative Budget and Audit (JBUD) Conmittee

Al aska State Legislature

Li ncol n, United Ki ngdom

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained a series of slides and presented
answers to questions asked by commttee nenbers at the |ast
neeting regarding oil and gas taxation.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a report regarding the Public
School Performance | ncentive Program

CAROL COVEAU, Superi ntendent

Anchorage School District (ASD)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on the Public
School Performance | ncentive Program

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Legi slative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided information on the final audit for
the Departnent of Conmmerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent,
Board of Public Accountancy - Sunset.

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff

to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information on regarding a
Rei mbursabl e Service Agreenment to the Departnent of Natural
Resour ces

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9: 05: 21 AM

BUD COW TTEE -2- January 12, 2009



CHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee neeting to order at 9:05 a.m Present at the call to
order were Representatives Doogan, Hawker, and Meyer and
Senat ors Stednman and Huggi ns. Representative Kelly and Senator
Therriault arrived as the neeting was in progress.

APPROVAL OF M NUTES

9: 06: 36 AM

SENATOR STEDVMAN made a notion to approve the mnutes of
[ Decenmber 9, 2008, and Decenber 10, 2008,] as presented. There
being no objection, the mnutes of Decenber 9, 2008, and

Decenber 10, 2008, were approved.

GAS FI SCAL DESI GN ADDI TI ONAL | NFORVATI ON

9:06: 47 AM
CHAI R SAMJELS announced that M. Dan D ckinson and Dr. David
Wod wll present answers to questions asked by nenbers at the
| ast commttee neeting regarding oil and gas taxation. He said
M. D ckinson will al so present some price forecasting
scenari 0s.
9:07: 23 AM

DAN E. DI CKINSON, CPA, Consultant to the Legislative Budget and
Audit (JBUD) Committee, Alaska State Legislature, discussed the
interactive nodel he prepared for the commttee using the
conputer program Excel. The variables in the nodel can be
changed to see what happens to the tax flow, he explained. The
nodel shows that when there is a gasline sone years from now the
state's production taxes wll go down, not wup, because of
peculiarities in the way the tax is defined.

9:09: 30 AM

MR. DI CKINSON wal ked the commttee through the nodeling
net hodology [slides 1-3 entitled, "Conbi ned Progressivity
Exanpl e"]. The variables that can be changed are the daily

volunme of oil and gas production, the Alaska North Slope West
Coast (ANS WC) and Henry Hub prices, the transportation to
mar ket  costs, and the upstream costs, he pointed out.
Calculation of the production tax value (PTV) includes the
upstream costs, he continued, and when oil production is |ower
t he upstreamcosts wll likely be | ower.

BUD COW TTEE - 3- January 12, 2009



CHAI R SAMUELS i nquired whether |ower oil production always neans
| ower upstream costs given that there are fixed costs.

MR. DI CKI NSON acknow edged that this is a good point. A big
field will have much nore cost and a small field wll only have
so nmuch cost, he said. However, there are tinmes when a conpany
is maki ng huge investnments, such as when it is turning a snal
field into a | arge one.

MR. DI CKI NSON conti nued expl ai ning the nodeling nethodol ogy. He
said the nodel is set up such that the gas values have a limt,
i.e. the nodel |ooks at the nunber of dollars per mllion cubic
feet (MCF), while the oil is set at a total figure that can be
t aken out of the DOR Revenue Sources Book.

9:11: 25 AM

MR. DI CKINSON ran through an exanple with a PTV per barrel of
oi |l equivalent (BOE) of $55. At a trigger point of $30, this
scenario |eaves $25 subject to progressivity, generating an
additional 10 percent tax rate, he said. The 25 percent base
tax rate conbined with the 10 percent progressivity rate results
in a total tax rate of 35 percent, generating a tax revenue of
$4.3 billion.

9:12:16 AM

MR. DI CKINSON next presented a nodeling scenario wth gas
production of 4.4 billion cubic feet (BCF) per day, a Henry Hub
price of $6 per M, a $.75 adjustnent that was used in the
TransCanada proposal, and a transportation to narket cost of
$2.75. This comes out to about $2.50 per MCF, he said, and this
is nmultiplied tinmes the volume, resulting in a PTV of about $3.5
billion. In this scenario, he continued, the oil and gas
streans are not calculated separately; they are conbined into
BCE. So, the BOE for the gas is 500 mllion which equals a BCE
of $35 per barrel. At a trigger point of $30, this |eaves $5
subject to progressivity, generating an additional 2 percent tax
rate. The 25 percent base tax conbined with the 2 percent
progressivity tax results in a tax rate of 27 percent. The tax
revenue in this conbined oil and gas scenario is about $4.2
billion, a decrease of about $100 mllion from the oil-only
scenario, he said.

9:14:17 AM

BUD COW TTEE -4- January 12, 2009



MR. DI CKI NSON denonstrated how changing the oil price variable
from $55 per barrel to $135 would generate a tax revenue to the
state of $12 billion in an oil-only scenario. He then added gas
to the nodel at a price of $6 and explained that, in this
conbined oil and gas scenario, the total production tax revenue
woul d drop to $10.7 billion.

9:15:52 AM

MR. DI CKI NSON ref erenced discussion froma nonth ago in which he
had said the state's total revenue would drop [as a result of
conbined oil and gas taxation] and Chair Sanmuels had said that
that would not be the case because there would be higher

royalties and higher incone taxes. Using the nodel, M.
Di cki nson denonstrated that the increase in gas royalty would
still not cover up the deficit. The increased inconme and

property taxes from gas production mght possibly nmake up that
difference, he said, but it could be that the state's total
revenue does go down.

9:16: 23 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN surnised that since oil taxes are nonthly,
looking at a certain price for one nonth will give a good
guesstimate on the effects of +that increnental nonth versus
using that price for an entire year.

MR. DI CKI NSON responded, "Absolutely.” The nodel will calculate
nmonthly figures when the variable for days per year is changed
from 365 to 30, he said. He acknow edged that Senator Stednman
is correct in a sense because the nodel has taken what is a
monthly cal culation and turned it into a constant for the entire
year .

9:17:13 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN presunmed that the point is to determne the
magni tude and direction of what is going to happen and not so
much the actual nunerics.

MR. DICKINSON replied that a lot of the elenents have been
removed from the calculation, but what he 1is trying to
illustrate is that the revenues could go down significantly by
t he act of addi ng gas.

9:17:35 AM

BUD COW TTEE -5- January 12, 2009



SENATOR STEDMVAN requested M. Dickinson to touch again on the
barrel of oil equivalent and the upstream costs being zeroed out
in the gas colum in the nodel

MR. DI CKI NSON expl ai ned that 6000 cubic feet of gas has the sane

nunber of BTUs as a barrel of oil. The | aw establishes that
relationship, he said; but, in the market, that sane econonic
rel ati onship does not always hold. He said he thinks the

| egislature was confident in adopting it because it had held
roughly constant for a nunber of years; however, this has not
been the case in the last couple of years. As the econom cs of
nmoving oil and gas around change, the prenmi um people are willing
to pay for liquidity change, he continued. Thus, under the [6:1
ratio] established in law, selling 6000 cubic feet of gas at $6
per MCF is equivalent to selling a $36 barrel of oil. Thi s
nmeans that if oil is selling at $135 a barrel, it is nore like a
15:1 than a 6:1 ratio.

9:19: 24 AM

MR. DI CKI NSON, regardi ng Senator Stedman's second point, said he
used Prudhoe Bay in his nodel which already has a central gas
facility. Thus, this gas is essentially ready to go into a gas
line, he continued, although right now it goes back down into

the ground to keep up enough pressure to produce oil. So, when
folks are ready to sell gas from Prudhoe Bay the increnenta
costs up to that central gas facility wll be very small.

However, this may not be true in a new gas field, he allowed
He said that in this Prudhoe Bay scenario, the gas costs are an

al | ocation issue. For exanple, if it costs $4 billion to run
Prudhoe Bay, the <cost assigned to oil <can be |owered by
assigning sone of that cost to gas. He explained that this
spreadsheet is set up so that as gas cost increases it conmes out
of the oil cost. But, he continued, one could independently
choose to increase the oil <cost and |eave the gas alone.

Fundanental ly, it does not change the equation that nuch, but
what it does change is the royalty cal cul ati on.

9:21: 08 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS interjected that it does not matter how the costs
are allocated because the progressivity and BOE are together in
one pool. The point of M. Dickinson's exanple is that only if
the costs are separated and then evaluated wth different
schenes you get a different answer than if they are treated
t oget her as under the current |aw.

BUD COW TTEE - 6- January 12, 2009



MR. DI CKI NSON answered, "Correct." |f the sane paraneters are
left in place, but the oil and gas streans are catal oged
separately so there is no cross subsidization, then that nunber
woul d be affected by how costs are divided between oil and gas.

9:21:46 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked M. Dickinson to address the issue of
capital credit because that is a significant deduction.

MR DICKINSON reiterated that to sinplify and keep to one
screen, he left some things out of the docunent, including
capital credits. The nodel calculates the taxes before credits,
he sai d.

9:22:21 AM

MR. DI CKINSON noted that the incentive to producers to produce
gas as a way to bring down their taxes has been an issue.
However, he said, if the gas price rises to $13 and the oil
price stays the sane, the 6:1 ratio is violated in the other
di rection. A tax should last 30-40 years, the l|life of the
gasline, he said. He then inserted this scenario into the nobde
and calculated that oil alone would generate $5 billion in
revenue and $4 billion would be added to that by the gas. So,
in this case, adding gas nearly doubles the tax, he said.
Sonetimes adding gas will raise the tax and sonetinmes it wll
| oner the tax.

9: 24: 53 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS questioned the nunber of barrels per day used in
t he af orenenti oned scenari o.

MR. DI CKI NSON said he used 700,000 barrels a day. He clarified
that this is a little bit |ower because he has noved a |ot of

cost over to gas. He re-mani pulated the nodel by putting the
cost back up to the $4 billion level and calculated there would
be about $4 billion in tax revenue.

9: 25: 34 AM

MR. DI CKI NSON expressed his concern that there mght be a great
hue and cry if people are expecting the dollars to go up as a
result of the gasline but instead they go dowmn. O, other folks
may be expecting it to be a subsidy and then the producers cone
back saying that wunder current price conditions they wll be

BUD COW TTEE -7- January 12, 2009



payi ng a huge addition. He warned that folks need to understand
whi ch of those things they are trying to do.

9:26: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether the assunptions built into
the oil pricing on the left hand side of the exanple include the
standard deduction for oil field costs.

MR. DI CKINSON said that would affect the $4 billion. If the
state thought that that was decreasing what conpanies were
deducting, it would have to nove that down a little bit, he
advi sed. And, if the state thought it was increasing what
conpani es were deducting because of falling volunmes then it
woul d have to nove that up a little bit. There is no direct way
of plugging that in because this is an amal gamation of a |ot of

nunbers together. But, yes, the state could recognize that, he
sai d.

9:27.:13 AM

CHAIR SAMUELS infornmed nenbers there wll soon be an Excel
spreadsheet on the conmmittee's website that can be mani pul at ed.
Menbers will be able to nmanipulate the volune of gas, volune of
oil, the price, [upstrean] costs, and the transportation costs

to see what happens.

MR. DICKINSON noted that the version currently posted on the
website is a PDF version so it cannot be nani pul at ed.

CHAIR SAMUJELS stated that a way will be figured out for nenbers
and the public to be able to mani pul ate the vari ous nmechani sns.

9: 28: 09 AM

MR. DICKINSON noved to his illustrations denonstrating what
happens when gas PTV per BOE and oil PTV per BCOE are put
t oget her. He said the line on the graph defines the point at
which there would be no effect from adding gas. Above the line
represents higher production tax revenues with added gas, and
below the line represents |ower production tax revenues wth
added gas. For the data points on the graph, he said he used
actual sales mnus actual transportation costs for the oil for
the years 2004-2008. For the upstream gas cost he used the
tari ff suggested by TransCanada which was in the range of $2.40,
al though the tariff suggested by Black & Veatch was about double
that in the $4.80 range. This gives a historical sense of where

BUD COW TTEE - 8- January 12, 2009



points have fallen out, he said. In general, it can be seen

that there will be higher revenues as a consequence of adding a
gasline - if the past is a good predictor of the future.
However, it will be a situation of subsidy if the tariff is what

Bl ack & Veatch predicted.
9:30: 17 AM

MR. DI CKINSON said his point is that if folks think it should be
one way or the other, right now it could be either way. He
noted that on the graph he took oil PTV's all the way out to
$400 a barrel, since this is about a 30 year stability on a

gasl i ne. VWhat is inportant is that the breakeven point Kkeeps
changi ng, he said. Sonetinmes nmaking an investnent wll nove the
state from a situation of higher taxes to |ower taxes and
sonetinmes that investnment will nove the state from | ower taxes

to higher taxes. There are sone very odd things that have to do
with the flex points built into the |aw, he advised. At each of
the cusp points on the graph, what happens to the tax as the
price or PTV are raised or lowred - and that can happen as a
consequence of investnent - changes.

9:33: 07 AM

DAVI D WOOD, PhD, Consultant to the Legislative Budget and Audit
(JBUD) Committee, Alaska State Legislature, directed attention
to a slide presentation entitled, "Reponses to Questions from
LB&A asked on Decenber 9th and 10th, 2008." He referred to
slide 2, which shows the inmpact of natural gas on conbined oil
and gas production tax. Dr. Wod said he thinks his approach
conplenments M. Dickinson's approach. He expl ained that he has
studied a wide range of oil and gas production tax values to
ascertain their affect in either increasing or decreasing the
ultimate production taxes paid. He said he found that the
magni tude of difference between the value of the oil production
tax stream and the gas production tax stream is inportant
relative to flex or cusp points in tax |aw Dr. Wod said two
other factors are of inportance: the relative volunmes of gas
and oil are going to have an inpact; and the anount of PTV
reinvested can have a significant inpact on the conbined tax
pai d.

9:34:29 AM
DR. WOOD noved on to a graph on slide 3, which depicts ["Natural

Gas Dilution Effects on Conbined O1 & Gas Production Tax."] He
pointed out that the horizontal axis shows the production tax

BUD COW TTEE -9- January 12, 2009



value for oil, while the vertical axis shows the increase or
decrease of the overall amount of tax paid as a result of adding
gas to an oil production tax stream Anyt hi ng above the zero
point depicts an increase, while anything below it shows a
decrease of that tax. The various lines on the graph represent

different gas production tax val ues. The lowest line is a $5
BCE gas production tax val ue. Most of the curve lies below the
zero line and becones nore negative as tax production values

increase. He explained, "As you get a greater disparity between
the low gas price and a high oil price, you' re increasing that
dilution effect of the gas." He said a $75 BCE production gas
value line "only just catches a negative" at approxinately $342.

9:36: 46 AM

DR. WOOD said it is interesting that between the $20 and $40 gas
production tax value Ilines there are areas that fluctuate
bet ween positive and negative "as we get that disparity between
a gas production tax value and an oil production tax value." At

that point, he said, it becones clear that it is becomng quite
difficult to predict variations in the inpact of gas on oil.
Most of the nunbers on the right-hand side of the graph don't

reflect the kind of oil and gas values that have been seen
hi storically; however, at some point in the future, "we may well
nove into sonme of those territories.” Dr. Wod said it is

important to understand that the inpact of gas on oil streamis
quite conplicated and is related to that structure of
progressivity.

9:38: 15 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS said, "The best case scenario is 10 years for gas
- probably closer to 15." He said there was a 4 percent decline
in Prudhoe Bay this year, which he characterized as a good year

He predicted that within 10 years the state will be at 400, 000

barrels a day, the tariff per unit will be higher because the
fixed cost of Alyeska Pipeline Service Conpany will not drop
proportionally, the volunme of oil will be Iow, and the cost per
unit wll probably go up. He asked M. Dickinson to use that
prediction and calculate the following into it: $40, $80, and
$100 a barrel. He added that he would Iike M. D ckinson to

start off using a presunption of zero gas.
9:40: 01 AM

MR. DI CKINSON outlined the follow ng: 450, 000 barrels a day,
$80 a barrel, and $8.00 transportation to market. In response

BUD COW TTEE -10- January 12, 2009



to Chair Samuels, he said transportation is currently about
$6. 00. He said he thinks there is a general presunption that
the state would prevail "on a |owcost nechanism"” He said the
carriers are not necessarily going to agree with that.

CHAI R SAMUELS asked if M. Dickinson thinks the cost will drop
when everything is "depreciated out."

MR, DICKINSON said that is certainly a possibly, although he

said he does not know if that is a likely scenario. Ret ur ni ng
to Chair Sanuel's previous request, he said there would be about
a $2 billion tax on $80 a barrel, whereas for $40 a barrel,
[tax] woul d be about $240 nmilli on.

9:41:56 AM

MR. DICKINSON, referring to [slide 3], previously shown by Dr.
Wod, said it is possible to predict "what each of those I|ines
that changes the cusp is"; however, what is unpredictable are
the small changes, which can have bizarre results. It is a
conpl ex set of interactions, he explained, and "the things that
are changing the tax may not be the determ nants that you want
tax changed by."

9:43:38 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN concl uded that the conbination of a high value
of oil - because there is less of it - and a |ower value of gas
- because there is nore of it - will result in virtually no net

revenue of f a gasline.
MR. DI CKI NSON concurr ed.

SENATOR STEDMAN posited that waiting for "first gas" may not be
t he best option.

MR. DI CKINSON responded that there are ways to fix the problem
that would make the amount of tax generated by the gas nore
predictable and may not tie it directly to the price of oil at
the tinme.

9:44: 36 AM
DR. WOOD noted that a nunber of the slides he is presenting
"also draw attention to the fact that the anmount of production

tax value that is reinvested will also have an inpact on this
dilution effect on oil stream”

BUD COW TTEE -11- January 12, 2009



9:45: 23 AM

DR WOOD returned to discussion of the slides. He drew
attention to slide 7, entitled, "Mrginal Production Tax Rates
Seen by a Producer for Reinvestnent Dollars.” The graph on

slide 7 has a horizontal axis that shows the production tax
val ue of the revenue stream Regardi ng the reinvestnent of the

producer, he said, "W can see that there would be quite
different inpacts on our marginal production tax rate, depending
on that production tax value." He noted that around the $90

production tax value there is a high point that actually goes
above 100 percent at $342. That, he said, is l|less inportant
than the fact that the graph shows |ines crossing over peaks at

di fferent poi nt's, and t hose lines r epr esent di fferent
percentages of reinvestnent. The point, he said, is that it is
very difficult to determ ne what exactly wll be "the inpact of

i nvestment on the taxation position," whether |ooked at fromthe
perspective of the State of Al aska or the producer.

9:47: 38 AM

DR WOOD noved on to slide 8, entitled, "Inplications of
Anal ysis." He spoke of the relationships being non-linear. He
said the magnitude of the variation would be influenced by a
nunber of factors. Wthout detailed analysis, it is difficult
to say whether a particular conbination of volumes and budgeted
values will lead to a positive or negative tax outcone.

9:49:15 AM

DR. WOOD presented slide 9. He concluded that under the current
production tax rules known as the conbined progressivity tax
rules (CPT), the inpact of a gas revenue stream nekes tax

planning quite difficult. One of the issues is whether it is a
stable tax structure over the long term In a situation where
gas does significantly dilute the revenue stream t he
consequences are that there will be a strong incentive to change
the tax nechanism and that may need to be done several tines
which nmay lead to fiscal instability. In addition, by

separating out that conbined production tax approach, splitting
the revenue streans into a gas and an oil revenue stream and
calculating the production taxes independently will be a way to
simplify the process and make it nore predictable and stable.
This approach is also flexible in the sense that incentives
could be placed on the gas stream focused on specific
situations, and separated from the oil stream He opined that

BUD COW TTEE -12- January 12, 2009



as a result, the cost analysis would be slightly nore difficult,
but it is a smll price to pay for a sinplified taxation
structure.

9:51: 36 AM

DR. WOOD noved to slide 10. He explained that the final slide
points out that the work on the two nodels has identified sone
of the issues with the existing structure. The work presented
in Decenber was focused on how a fiscal design could be
structured for the yet-to-find (YTF) future gas reserves. He
expressed his belief that there was value in doing analysis on
the existing proven reserves of Prudhoe Bay and Point Thomson on
a multi-year basis. This would establish, not only how it | ooks
in the current fiscal structure, but how mght it look wth

alternative structures separating out gas and oil, and wth
di fferent devel opnent scenarios and gasoline alternatives such
as liquefied natural gas (LNG. He stressed that the work

presented in Decenber was based on hypothetical fields over
multiple years and is useful to |ook at exploration and future
production potential; however, tax planning analysis mnust
i nclude the proved reserves as well.

9:53: 37 AM

DR. WOCOD continued to explain that another aspect is to |ook at
the fiscal design of Alaska and conpare it wth the fiscal
design of a nunber of the main gas producing states in the Lower
48. Although those gas resources are quite different, there is
| ots of investnment going into non-conventional gas such as shale
gas, and different states are establishing different incentives
to encourage investnent. Dr. Wod predicted that in the next
decade Alaska's gas will be conpeting with those gas projects
and the fiscal design of other projects in the U S

9:54: 34 AM

DR. WOOD ended his presentati on.

9:54: 43 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS said he would like to set up another scenario.

MR. DI CKI NSON recommended that Chair Samuels, while describing
anot her scenario, renenber that as people |look for gas, they

will find oil; therefore, 450 [barrels per day] nay not be an
"out-of -the-range, high point."

BUD COW TTEE - 13- January 12, 2009



9:55: 57 AM

CHAIR SAMUELS, wusing the figure of 450 barrels per day,
descri bed another scenario in which every broad-based tax was
instituted, the entire permanent fund dividend was taken away,
there was a zero tariff and one-third the current cost at
Prudhoe Bay, and "we still didn't nmake it." He asked if that is
an unfair assessnent of what it will be like in ten years.

MR. DI CKI NSON responded by noting that the Revenue Sources Book
says that in fiscal year 2010, at $40 a barrel for oil, all
general fund revenues conbined will be approxinmately $2 billion.

CHAI R SAMUELS observed, "That's at 700,000 barrels a day."
MR. DI CKI NSON r esponded, "That was [ 650,000 barrels a day]."
9:58:16 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS enphasi zed that each tinme he runs the nunbers he
concludes: "You can't make it, unless you get gas."

SENATOR STEDVAN stated that there is no incentive to get gas if
there is no net revenue. Anot her issue, he renmarked, is that
there are other tax nechanisns available to fall back on "if
that scenario does produce itself in our future.”

9:59:19 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS said Commissioner Glvin nmintains that the
adm nistration is not convinced that there needs to be an
adjustnent to Alaska's Cear and Equitable Share (ACES). He
asked M. Dickinson if he has talked to "themi about the
differential between anal yses.

MR. DICKINSON said he held sonme prelimnary conversations
last nmonth, and the general notion was that total taxes
would be falling to be close to the oil-only tax, thus
there would be a large incentive built in. He said the
producers had not indicated that there should be a
different kind of incentive. He surmsed that Dr. Wod's
point is that if you separate oil and gas, and you build
certain things that have gas-only progressivity that is
nore predictable and oil-only progressivity that is nore
predictable it may end up having higher revenues or a
hi gher bite. But, if it's nore predictable and it's nore

BUD COW TTEE -14- January 12, 2009



tied to what a producer does so the producer understands
what will happen with investnent, that may in sonme senses
be a better situation for a producer than one saying
there's a fairly large random elenent in the tax that wll
result.

10: 00: 58 AM

SENATOR HUGAE NS opined that the average Al askan, the state, and
the producers want a systemthat is predictable.

MR. DI CKINSON agreed and expressed his belief that in sone
ranges the predictability is nore inportant than the "overall
amount of the take".

10: 01: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN questioned how to construct a predictable
tax on a commodity which had decreased in value by two-thirds in
the prior six nonths.

MR. DICKINSON agreed with the difficulty, but suggested that
revenue prediction for an investor differs from budget
predi ction.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN disagreed and stated that predictable
revenue i s based on price assunption.

MR. DICKINSON clarified that an investor mght be confortable
knowi ng that "X amount” of their profit is allocated to taxes.
He pointed out that the budget prediction dilemma is in not
knowi ng the amount of profit.

10: 02: 21 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS surm sed that if the governnment perceived budget
prediction as a problem to be fixed, there would be a need to
review the cost allocations and the tax rate.

MR. DICKINSON said flex points would be a third consideration.
He offered his belief that the sane flex points would not apply
to gas as apply to oil. He opined that it is difficult to
understand a barrels of oil equivalent nunber that includes
mllions of cubic feet and a mathematical fornmula. He offered
his belief that it is difficult for many people to understand
whet her a BOE nunber is high or low, hence it is difficult to
di scuss progressivity on gas.

BUD COW TTEE - 15- January 12, 2009



10: 03: 47 AM

MR. DI CKI NSON suggested that if there is concern that 90 percent
of the budget is determned by a highly volatile nechanism the
solution is to create a buffer nmechanism such as a fund into
which all oil and gas revenues go and from which there is a
met hod of stable payouts for revenue.

CHAI R SAMUELS | aughingly noted that this was attenpted during
t he past year.

MR. DI CKINSON said that only pursuing a tax nmethod sol ution may
not be a broad enough quest.

CHAI R SAMUELS qui pped that the state would not be 90 percent
dependent on oil next year, but would be 40 percent dependent on
cash froma savings account, which reflected diversification.

10: 05: 17 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS announced that M. Dickinson will discuss price
forecasts froma variety of entities.

MR. DICKINSON directed attention to the chart on a projected

sl i de. He explained that the <chart ©plotted oil price
predictions during the |last calendar quarter, 2008, by ten
anal ysts which included Ctigroup, Merrill Lynch, Deutsche Bank

the federal Energy Information Agency (EIA), and Gol dnan Sachs.
He stated that these price predictions were based on the West
Coast and West Texas Internediate (W) daily crude oil prices.
He noted that as the actual prices changed, the average annua
predictions reflected this sanme price.

10: 08: 32 AM

MR. DICKINSON said that the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) oi
price forecast of $75 per barrel, which was released in early
Decenber, was significantly higher than nost other forecasts at
that tine of $40 per Dbarrel. He allowed that there was a
negative reaction to this forecast. He disclosed that DOR had
made the analysis and forecast on Cctober 7, and that a
bureaucratic delay resulted in the forecast not being rel eased
unti| Decenber.

MR. DI CKINSON pointed out that the EIA does put out a nonthly
Short-Term Energy Qutlook (STEO which projects prices for the

BUD COW TTEE - 16- January 12, 2009



upcom ng year. He commented that the current advanced forecast
price of oil is $51.75 per barrel. He noted that the Short-Term
Energy Qutlook (STEO) projections are also |agging behind the
actual rise and fall of oil prices. He comented that the
federal governnent is also making big decisions based on the
energy prices.

10: 11: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked how far each of the predictors points
into the future.

MR. DI CKINSON responded that each predictor is |looking at
cal endar year 2009. He explained that since the DOR forecast is
for the fiscal year, he used an average of the cal endar year
predi ctions.

CHAI R SAMUELS t hanked M. D cki nson.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT - PUBLIC SCHOOL
PERFORMANCE | NCENTI VE PROGRAM

10: 13: 19 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS announced the next order of business wuld be a
report regarding the Public School Performance Incentive
Program

10: 14: 59 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opment (EED), expl ained
that the Public School Performance Incentive Program was adopted
by the legislature three years ago as a pilot program He said
the departnent has not included the program in its fiscal year
2009 (FY 09) budget and recomends that the program not be
continued. M. Jeans explained that the program was intended to
encourage collaboration at the school level to inprove student

achi evenent . He said there has not been a |ot of support for
t he program For exanple, during its first year, there were
articles in the newspaper claimng the program was pitting
teachers against teachers and schools against schools. M .

Jeans thanked the legislature for the opportunity to conduct the
program and said the departnent does not anticipate the
| egi sl ature's continued support of it.

10:17: 12 AM

BUD COW TTEE -17- January 12, 2009



SENATOR HUGAE NS observed that many prograns initiated by
i ndi vidual s di sappear when those individuals are no |onger
i nvol ved.

MR. JEANS, in response to Senator Huggins, confirned that the
program was brought about by fornmer Conm ssioner Sanpson, and he
surm sed t hat Conmi ssi oner Sanpson woul d support t he
departnent's decision to discontinue the program He added,
"There's been a | ot of push-back fromthe district."

10:17: 48 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS said he read about a nunber of cases in which
peopl e said they would not accept the noney. He asked how often
t hat actual |y happened.

MR. JEANS responded that one <check was returned to the
departnent in the last two years.

10:18:18 AM

CAROL COVEAU, Superintendent, Anchorage School District (ASD),
in response to Chair Sanuels, noted that the Departnent of
Educati on recei ves about one quarter of a $5 billion budget.

CHAI R SAMUELS remarked, "Wthin 10 years, we're going to have
problens ... as production declines." He expressed appreciation
that sonething new got tried. He asked if there are any other
i deas bei ng formul at ed.

MR. JEANS spoke of a three-year funding bill for education
passed by the legislature, and noted that the geographic cost
differentials will be faced in over a five-year period. He

reported that there were increases in the base student
al l ocation of $100 a year for the next two years after 2009, as
well as increases in the intensive needs students category.

10: 20: 04 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS warned that "putting noney into the sane systent
currently in place will eventually result in a downward pressure
on the departnment; it will no longer be possible to spend the

same anount of noney. He clarified that he would like to know
if there are any progranms currently being considered to stave
of f the upcom ng probl ens.

BUD COW TTEE - 18- January 12, 2009



MR. JEANS said he does not have any suggestions to increase the
state's revenue to support its budget.

10: 21: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER offered his understanding that there were
three progranms inplenmented under Comm ssioner Sanpson. In
addition to the incentive program there is a nentoring program
whi ch Representative Meyer called "a huge success.”

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative Meyer, noted that there
is a "coaches' progrant where coaching is provided to districts
that are not performng well. Both the nentoring and coaches’
prograns are working well, he said. He noted that Comm ssioner
LeDoux has nade internal changes to the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent, while the Deputy Conm ssioner Les Mrris
will be focusing on the inprovenent of schools and districts

The departnment still collects and eval uates student data based
on the state assessnent, and it provides technical assistance to
districts regarding how to use that information to inprove

student achi evenent. He opined that the department is heading
in the right direction and there will be inprovenent in public
school s.

10: 23: 38 AM

MR. JEANS reiterated that the departnent has not been | ooking at
ways to reduce costs to education. He said consolidation is a
concept that even the legislature has discussed nunerous tines
over the years. He noted that Legislative Audit Division
conducted a study to see if there would be adm nistrative cost
savings by consolidating school districts, and the results of

t hat study showed that the savings would be mnimal. He stated,
"Unfortunately, Alaska's a very large state with very dispersed
popul ation, but we still have an obligation to educate the

children wherever they live, and it's extrenely expensive."

10: 24: 15 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS nentioned the federal stinulus package, and he
offered his understanding that "education was one of the
categories that was going to be eligible.” He asked if the
department has nade any requests regarding the federal stimnulus
package that woul d i npact the education conmunity.

MR. JEANS replied that the departnent is just now getting
i nformati on about what will be included in the federal stinulus

BUD COW TTEE -19- January 12, 2009



package. He said, "The big item that has cone our direction is
funding for ... construction of schools, and we're not sure
exactly what our share would be under that, or how that would
i npact the state.”

MR. JEANS, in further response to Senator Huggins, said he does
not think deferred maintenance is specified under the federa
sti mul us package.

10: 25: 25 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS, regarding drop-outs, offered his understanding
that as soon as a student begins eleventh grade, the clock
starts ticking and if the student does not subsequently graduate
with his/her class, he/she beconmes a drop-out. The governor's
association is considering a program in which that clock would
start ticking as soon as a student enters ninth grade. He asked
what the state's definition of drop-out is.

MR. JEANS said he believes the clock starts ticking when a
student enters ninth grade. In response to follow up questions,
he offered his understanding that there are "sone adjustnents to
that cal culation,” but he said he could not describe them He
said he does not know whether or not special education students
are treated differently in that regard. He said he does know
that drop-outs are a big issue for the departnent and
Comm ssi oner LeDoux woul d address the matter forthcom ng.

10: 27: 19 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked M. Jeans how a student would be treated
if hel/she took five years - instead of the four years the rest
of his/her classmates took - to graduate.

MR. JEANS responded that that student would be considered a
drop-out, but "there is some adjustnent that occurs if a student
gets their diploma in their fifth year." He said he does not
know the exact calculation but could get that information. In
response to a followup question, he confirned that graduation
rates and drop-out rates are two conpletely different
cal cul ati ons.

10: 28: 47 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN, regarding the stimulus package and the interest
the federal governnent appears to have in the construction of
new schools, said in Southeast Al aska, construction of new

BUD COW TTEE - 20- January 12, 2009



schools is not a priority, whereas getting children into schoo
is. He asked where new school construction is warranted around
t he state versus mai nt enance.

MR. EDDY reviewed that the departnment produces two |ists: t he
maj or nmai ntenance list and the school construction |ist. The
majority of the schools on the construction list exist in "the
unor gani zed areas of the state,” and they include old BIA and
Mol Iy Hootch schools, which are now getting to the point where

they need to be repl aced. The only nechani sm available to the
schools to be replaced is through the state grant program
Conversely, on the major namintenance list there will be a blend

of both regional education attendance areas and munici pal school
districts.

10: 30: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked M. Jeans whether he was surprised at
the failure of a programthat was [initially] strongly supported
by the unions, the National Education Association (NEA)
teachers, principals, and superintendents.

MR. JEANS responded that he was not surprised and expressed his
belief that the programitself did not fail, but that there was
some m sunderstandi ng about what the intent of the program was
and how it functioned; therefore, the departnent elected not to
extend the program

10: 31: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY poi nted out that novenent in a direction to
try to neasure performance with sone elenents of conpetition,
and educating and graduating kids, is nore inportant than
worrying about hurt feelings. He expressed his disappointnent
at the failure and urged the department to quit throw ng noney
at problens and to find ways to nmake needed inprovenents in the
future with the available revenue. He stressed that sone
initiatives do not have as nmuch to do with noney than wth
conpl ete change, and suggested the funds fromthis program could
be used for additional support for the vouchers program and the
[ Charter Schools] program Representative Kelly stated his
frustration that prograns that wll have a major and positive
ef fect do not have the support of the "old traditional crowd."

10: 34: 15 AM

BUD COW TTEE -21- January 12, 2009



CHAIR SAMJELS warned M. Jeans about the wupcomng revenue
probl ens for the departnent.

MR. JEANS assured the conmittee that the departnent is |ooking
forward to working with the standing conmttees on education to
address sone of the issues raised by Representative Kelly.

CHAI R SAMUELS directed M. Jeans to work with his staff on the
required report to the legislature. He expressed his doubt that
the legislature would [ f und] the program w thout t he
recomrendati on of the departnent.

10: 35: 25 AM

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU inforned the committee that the Public
School Performance and Incentive Program was originally
supported by superintendents because they liked the idea of
col | aboration anong all of the staff in a school environnent.
However, in Anchorage each of the schools that received

performance incentives were "parent choice" schools of very high
soci o-econom ¢ status. She explained that there was huge growth
in the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title 1)
schools, and in other schools, but not quite to the sanme |evel
As a result, the situation becane very denoralizing to all of
the staff. It was recognized that when parents have enough
resources to be actively involved in their children's education
there is increased student achievenment and |ess parental support
was a detrinent to schools where parents were unable to provide
transportation. Additionally, in rural areas with two or three
school s, incentives received by one school because of varying
ci rcunst ances and not because of the effort on the part of the
school, divided the comunity. She clarified that she was not
agai nst incentivizing schools, but there are other ways to do
t hat and expressed her desire to "be part of the discussion.”

SUPERI NTENDENT COMEAU rel ated that the staff of a charter school
that received an incentive had acknow edged that active parental
i nvol venent made a huge difference in the ability of its
students to attend school regularly and not "nove around a lot."
In fact, none of the Anchorage schools receiving an incentive
had a high nobility rate, not because parents are dissatisfied
with the school, but because of where affordable housing is
avai |l abl e. She noted that she was glad to hear the discussion
on this subject as she was about to present the ASD budget.
Contrary to sone school districts, the ASD is continuing to gain
students and is struggling with its budget that was based on the
Oct ober count date.

BUD COW TTEE -22- January 12, 2009



10: 38: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether there is historical data
that indicates whether the April student head count is
significantly different than the October count date.

SUPERI NTENDENT COMEAU answered that this is the first tine
Anchorage's school population in January is higher by far than

in Cctober. Hi storically, due to early graduation and drop
outs, the school population declines at the end of the first
senmester. |In response to a further question, she confirned that

at this point in tinme, her district has 500 nore students than
in October.

REPRESENTATI VE STEDMAN nentioned that during the legislative
session the departnment will be invited to present information
about school enrollnment across the state. He opined that there
seens |ike there has been an acceleration in nunbers this year.

10: 40: 36 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked Superintendent Coneau to suggest other
ways to incentivize perfornance.

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU expressed her belief that noney is not the

way to incentivize people. She opined that teachers,
principals, and superintendents are working very hard to
i ncrease student achievenent and the graduation rate. The

bi ggest challenge for teachers is finding time to collaborate
within their work day. She said that adding time into the work
year - perhaps by additional conpensated days into the school
year, or addi ti onal hours to the day for pl anni ng,
col | aboration, training, and professional devel opnent - would go
far to incentivize and encourage the good work the staff 1is
doing in the school.

10:42: 08 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whet her Superi nt endent Conmeau was
suggesting increasing staff.

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU replied no. She reiterated that
conpensated time could be added to each [current] teacher's day
for collaboration, planning, and professional devel opnent. O,

additional paid days could be added to the school vyear to
provide for the additional tinme needed to inprove |essons.

BUD COW TTEE -23- January 12, 2009



SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that this nodel is being practiced in sone
m ddle schools in the state. He asked for Superintendent
Conmeau' s thoughts about two head counts during the school year
as recommended by the Mat-Su Borough School District.

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU agreed that if a school's student
enrol | ment goes up there needs to be an opportunity to apply for
suppl enmentary funding in February or March. I n addition, when
i nt ensi ve-needs students enroll after the count date there needs
to be an opportunity to look for additional funding.

10:44: 05 AM

SENATOR HUGG NS asked how the noney [for additional or
i nt ensi ve-needs students] can follow the student from school to
school as they nove.

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU confirned that teachers are hired in the

fall with a contract for the school year. That is the biggest
chal | enge.
10: 44: 38 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked whether the mgration of rural students
i nto Anchorage school s has noticeably increased.

SUPERI NTENDENT COMEAU expl ai ned that students cone and then go.
In January a group [noved to Anchorage] from rural Al aska and
many fam lies have cone in fromCalifornia |looking for jobs. In
addition, there has been an increased mlitary buildup in the
Mat anuska- Susi tna Val | ey, Fairbanks, and Anchorage.

10: 45: 19 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for a description of the ASD nobility rate
this year.

SUPERI NTENDENT COMEAU said she would provide that information
However, sonme schools have a very stable student population rate
and others, in nostly Title 1 schools and in areas of affordable
housi ng, have a 200- 300 percent turnover.

10: 45: 59 AM

BUD COW TTEE - 24- January 12, 2009



SENATOR HUGGE NS spoke of "perfornmance oriented" students noving
from one school to another with a coach. "[ Do] we have the
right structure to fix that or not?" he asked.

SUPERI NTENDENT  COVEAU responded that the Alaska School
Activities Association (ASAA) governs that when a child's famly
noves its residence, the child can participate in activities at
the new school; however, there is a one-tine summer transfer
rule and if the student noves again he or she can not
participate in activities for eighteen weeks.

10: 47: 12 AM

CHAIR SAMUELS referred to a study by the University of Al aska,
Anchorage (UAA), Institute of Social and Econonmc Research
(I'SER), that indicated 57 percent of the nunicipal budget was
tied to oil [production].

SUPERI NTENDENT COVEAU recommended that conmmittee nenbers read
the | SER st udy.

CHAI R SAMJELS stated that [he and] Senator Meyer will wite the
report to the legislature on this program

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

10:48: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STEDMAN made a notion to nove to executive
session under Uniform Rule 22 for the purpose of discussing
confidential audit reports under AS 24.20.301. There being no
objection, the commttee went into executive session at 10:48
a.m

CHAI R SAMUELS invited Josh Applebee to stay for the executive
sessi on.

CHAI R SAMJELS called the commttee back to order at 10:56 a.m

FINAL AUDIT - DEPARTMENT OF COVMERCE, COWMMUNITY, & ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, BOARD OF PUBLI C ACCOUNTANCY — SUNSET

CHAI R SAMJELS announced that the next order of business would be
consideration of the final audit for the Departnent of Conmerce,
Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, Board of Public Accountancy -
Sunset .

BUD COW TTEE - 25- January 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY inquired as to clarification of the process
taken for the closure of an investigative conplaint.

10: 56: 15 AM

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit D vision,
Al aska State Legislature, responded that conplaints nade to the
investigations unit of the Division of Corporations, Business,
and Professional Licensing (DCBPL) are prioritized using a
three-tiered system determned by the inportance of the
conpl ai nt. Thus, she noted, conplaints that affect life or
safety, such as those that would affect the Al aska Board of
Pharmacy or the Al aska State Medical Board, would have a higher

priority for investigation than conplaints t hat af f ect
consuners, which would have a secondary enphasis. Additionally,
the licensing board will often initiate conplaints that fall

under their regulations, and those conplaints are generally
considered a lesser priority than life or safety and consuner
conpl ai nt s. She added that the DCBPL investigators currently
attenpt to prioritize their efforts. She opined that the Board
of Public Accountancy (BPA) has generally been satisfied wth
the efforts of the investigative unit. She further opined that
the investigator’s priority process also works well. However,
she noted that in instances of staff turnover that absent a good
case managenent system new staff does not know where to begin.
She suggested that this is the area within investigations that
needs i nprovenent.

10: 57: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY inquired as to whether a procedure exists
that requires the BPA to respond to a conplainant within a
specific tinme period, regardless of whether it is for a high
priority conplaint or one of a lesser priority. He further
inquired if the BPA would then revisit the matter and grant an
extension of tinme for the investigation.

M5. DAVI DSON responded that she is not aware of the protocol for
interaction between the BPA and the D vision of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing investigators when an
initial conplaint is nmade. She added that the purpose of the
investigation is to determ ne whether a licensing action should
be taken, and if so, the reconmendation is taken to the board.
She recalled that the BPA neets about four tines a year. She
reiterated that she did not have an answer with respect to the
turnaround tine for the BPA to respond to the conplainant since
she is not aware of the dial ogue between the investigator and

BUD COW TTEE - 26- January 12, 2009



the board. She advised that the process used by the Legislative
Audit Division auditor is to review tinmeframes for how quickly
resolution of investigative cases occurs, the length of tinme it
takes to bring the matter to the board, and whether the BPA
takes its action in a speedy manner.

10: 59: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY noted that he did not wsh to slow this
audit down since it is his understanding that there has been
inprovenent in the delivery of investigation service. He
inquired as to whether the investigations unit of the D vision
of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing Division
could be required to ensure that all conplaints are handled
tinmely, regardless of the |evel of conplaint.

CHAIR SAMUELS inquired as to whether Representative Kelly i
offering this suggestion with respect to conplaints for al
I icensing boards or specifically to conplaints under the BPA

S
I

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY reiterated that while he did not want to
delay action on this sunset review, he suggested that conplaints
should be handled within a certain timefrane. He said that
perhaps a matrix could be developed to provide the BPA an
overvi ew of the progress taken on investigative conplaints.

11: 01: 02 AM

CHAIR SAMJELS offered that one option to ensure this happens
woul d be for the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee staff to
work to establish a general policy for all sunset audits rather
than to anend the statutes. He further noted that the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee <could work wth
| egi slators who oversee the Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity, &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) budget in order to help establish
paraneters on the budget and to ensure the goal that the
i censi ng boards are nore responsive.

11: 01: 31 AM

M5. DAVIDSON said that about seven or eight boards wll be
comng wup for sunset audit reviews during the upcom ng
| egislative session, of which at least five are regulatory
boards. She suggested that the Legislative Audit D vision could
review not only that the investigators are prioritizing the
cases, but <could also review the aging of conplaints to
determine how fast the conplaint is resolved. She further

BUD COW TTEE -27- January 12, 2009



offered that in her experience it is not unconmon for a board

such as the Board of Barbers and Hairdressers (BBH), to be |ess
satisfied with the Investigative Unit of the DCBPL than the
State Medical Board (SMB) because conplaints against the BBH

would tend to fall into the |owest category of effort by the
i nvestigators and the conplaints for the SMB woul d have a higher
priority. She reiterated that with at least five regulatory

boards due for sunset audits this year the auditors could review
not only the priority of conplaints, but could also review aging
of ongoi ng i nvestigations.

11: 02: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY acknow edged that the additional |ayer of
review would help and could also help legislators better assess
t he conpl ai nt processes for each of the boards.

CHAI R SAMUJELS suggested that the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee could work with the House and Senate Labor & Commerce
commttees (L&) since all of the sunset bills are ultimtely
referred to the L&C conmittees for review He offered that Ms.
Davi dson could work with Legislative Budget and Audit Committee
staff to draft letters to the respective L& committee chairs
wi th suggested intent |anguage for themto consider attaching to
any sunset bills.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded with his preference for that to
happen.

11: 03: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN recalled a recomendation about not
filling vacant positions very quickly and he further recalled
t hat several recommendations |ike that were included in other
prelimnary sunset audits.

M5. DAVI DSON acknow edged Representative Doogan is correct. She
recalled the issue arose when the Legislative Budget and Audit
Comm ttee considered an audit for the Suicide Prevention Counci

(SPC). She further recalled that the Legislative Audit Division
had previously recomended nore tinmely appointnments to the SPC
She said auditors have recommended statutory changes to reduce

some of the requirenents for the SPC nenbers. She noted that
requirenments for the nenbers of other professional boards are
not that stringent. She added that the |icensing boards

generally neet quarterly and preparing for a neeting requires
time, effort, and energy on the part of all board nenbers.

BUD COW TTEE -28- January 12, 2009



11: 05:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN inquired as to whether this [vacancy]
issue is a new problemor if this is an historical problemthat
has wor sened.

M5. DAVI DSON responded that the issue [of vacancies] ebbs and

flows. She noted it is not always an issue, but it is not
uncommon for the issue to arise. She said the problem is
exacerbated in instances of boards and comm ssions that have
nore narrowWy defined requirenents. She further stated that

with the BPA it is just a matter of [the appointnents] just not
bei ng done.

11: 06: 02 AM

SENATOR STEDMAN nade a notion that the following final audit
report be released to the public for response:

Department of Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent,
Board of Public Accountancy — Sunset

There being no objection, the notion passed.
OTHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS

11: 06: 22 AM

CHAI R SAMJELS asked to add one additional item to the agenda.
He explained that a notion was needed to approve a Rei nbursable
Services Agreenent (RSA) to the Departnment of Natural Resources
(DNR) since at the last Legislative Budget and Audit Conmttee
meeting the nmotion included an RSA to the Al aska Departnent of
Fish & Ganme (ADF&G), but the commttee inadvertently omtted the
notion for DNR for the RSA to cover the R S. 2477 and Navi gabl e
Wat er s.

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff to Representative Ralph Sanuels, Al aska
State Legislature, clarified that the Legislative Budget and
Audit Conmmittee had approved a notion at its last neeting for
DNR. However, she noted that the notion did not cover the full
anount and this notion would correct the anount of the RSA to
the portion allocated to DNR for the RSA

11: 07:10 AM

BUD COW TTEE -29- January 12, 2009



SENATOR STEDMAN nade a notion that the Chair be authorized to
anend the existing contract with the Departnment of Natural
Resources for research and preparation work on RS 2477 and
navi gabl e waters to an anount not to exceed $70, 000.

There being no objection, the notion passed.

11: 07: 32 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS thanked Ms. Sutton for her work over the past
| egi sl ati ve session.

SENATOR HUGGE NS assunmed this was Chair Sanuel’s last official
act as the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee Chair. He
t hanked Chair Sanuels on behalf of the Senate and said Chair
Sanmuels has earned the respect of the legislature and the
public. He also offered his personal thanks to Chair Sanuels.

CHAI R SAMUELS noted his appreciation for the coments.

11: 08:42 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further Dbusiness before the conmttee, the

Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
11: 08 a. m

BUD COW TTEE - 30- January 12, 2009



